
 
 

 

TOWN OF WEATHERSFIELD 
SELECTBOARD 

 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

 
MONDAY, AUGUST 21, 2023 AT 6:30PM 

MARTIN MEMORIAL HALL 
5259 US ROUTE 5, ASCUTNEY,  VT 05030 

 
ZOOM MEETING AVAILABLE 

CLICK THE MOUNTAIN ON WEBSITE HOMEPAGE OR 
PHONE NUMBER: (929) 205 - 6099 | MEETING ID: 542-595-4364 |                                   

NO PARTICIPANT ID: PRESS # MEETING PASSCODE: 8021 

 
 

PHONE 
(802) 674-2626 

 
FAX 

(802) 674-2117 

 
 

1. Call to Order 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Agenda Review 
4. Comments from SB, TM, and Citizens on Topics not on the Agenda 
5. Review Minutes from Previous Meeting: 8/7/2023 
6. Continued: Public Hearing: Zoning Bylaws – Use Tables & Definitions 
7. FY23 Year-end Reserve Transfers  
8. Board of Listers: Errors & Omissions to Grand List 
9. AVFD Hose Replacement  
10. Sale of Ascutney Fire Engine 1 
11. Town Manager Update 
12. ARPA Discussion  
13. Appointments 

a. Budget Committee (5 Vacancies) 
b. Conservation Commission (2 Vacancies) 

i. Marina Garland 
c. Energy Coordinator (1 Vacancy) 
d. Green Up Coordinator (1 Vacancy) 
e. Lister (1 Vacancy) 
f. Parks and Recreation (1 Vacancy) 
g. Trustees of Public Funds (1 Vacancy) 

i. David Ainley 
h. Veterans Memorial Committee (2 Vacancies) 
i. Village Wastewater Committee (3 vacancies) 
j. Zoning Board of Adjustment (2 Vacancies) 

14. Approve Warrant 
15. Any other business 
16. Adjourn 

 

 

 



Select Board 
Martin Memorial Hall 

5259 Route 5, Ascutney VT 
Monday, August 7, 2023 

6:30 PM 
REGULAR MEETING 

Draft Minutes 
 

Select Board Members Present: Michael Todd, David Fuller, Paul Tillman, Kelly 
O’Brien, Wendy Smith 
 
Select Board Members Absent:  
 
Brandon Gulnick, Town Manager 
 
Others Present: 
Olivia Savage Scott Duffy  
Joseph Bublat Ryan Gumbart  
John Arrison  Barbara Thomas  
Beth Humton John Keniston  
Kathleen Duffy   

 
1 Call to Order 

Mr. Todd called the meeting to order at 6:30pm. 
 

2 Pledge of Allegiance 
Mr. Tillman led the pledge of allegiance.  
 

3 Agenda Review  
Mr. Todd stated that he may come back to agenda review incase item #15 
needs to be moved up sooner.  
 

4 Comments from SB, TM, and Citizens on Topics not on the Agenda 
Mr. Duffy expressed concerns surrounding damages to his property during 
severe flooding and inquired if the Town could do something about it since a 
town bridge is part of the issue. The Town Manager stated that the problem is 
being looked into and that Mr. Duffy will be kept in the loop.  
 
Mr. Fuller had spoken with Farm Service Agency and help for farms has been 
slow going but there may be a property tax relief from the Board of Civil 
Authority can assist in a per acre grant. Mr. Fuller wanted to let local farmers 
know that he is going to propose property tax relief via ARPA funds. The 
Select Board agreed that there should be future conversations about how to 
help small businesses in town that were impacted by the flood and frost.  



 
5 Review Minutes from Previous Meeting: 7/11/23 & 7/12/23 

Additions/corrections/deletions: 
a. None. 
Motion: To approve the 7/11/23 minutes. 
Made by: Mr. Tillman  Second: Ms. O’Brien 
Vote: All in Favor   
 
Motion: To approve the 7/12/23 minutes. 
Made by: Mr. Tillman  Second: Ms. O’Brien 
Vote: All in Favor   
 

6 Public Hearing: Zoning Bylaws – Use Tables & Definitions 
Mr. Todd opened the hearing and Mr. Tillman read aloud the Notice of Public 
Hearing. The Land Use Administrator read aloud the Planning Commission 
Reporting Form.  
 
Participants Mr. Gumbart, Mr. Gulnick, Mr. Arrison, Mr. Bublat, and Ms. 
Humton then swore an oath that any testimony given in the hearing is of the 
truth, under penalty of perjury, so help them God. 
 
Mr. Gumbart stated that the last time the Select Board adopted changes to the 
Bylaws, that those changes did not include amendments to the Use Tables and 
that the Use Table is like the Table of Contents of the document. The 
amendment in question is just to catch up with the changes that have already 
been made. Ms. Humton and Mr. Bublat both stated that they agree with this.  
 
The Select Board and participants discussed hearing procedures, the changes 
made, how it is a living document, the documents structure, and how there is 
no regulatory change.  

 
Motion: To continue the Zoning Bylaws hearing for a final decision by the 
Select Board on 8/21/23 at 6:30pm.  
Made by: Mr. Fuller  Second: Mr. Tillman 
Vote: All in Favor   
 
Mr. Fuller stated that this motion will give two more weeks for those who 
may not have had a chance to review or comment on it.  
 
Mr. Todd closed the hearing.  

 
7 Highway #95 Deliberation 

Mr. Todd read aloud the following Findings of Fact: 

https://www.weathersfieldvt.org/sites/g/files/vyhlif6216/f/agendas/public_hearing_notice_0.pdf
https://www.weathersfieldvt.org/sites/g/files/vyhlif6216/f/agendas/public_hearing_notice_0.pdf
https://www.weathersfieldvt.org/sites/g/files/vyhlif6216/f/uploads/bylaw_amendment_reporting_form.pdf
https://www.weathersfieldvt.org/sites/g/files/vyhlif6216/f/uploads/bylaw_amendment_reporting_form.pdf


F1. During the Site Examination, the Select Board found that Highway #95 is 
unidentifiable from the surrounding field. 
F2. During the Site Examination, the Select Board found no evidence of an 
existing road or lane. 
F3. During the Site Examination, the Select Board learned that the site was 
different in-person than the maps show. 
 
Mr. Todd read aloud the Conclusions of Law: 
The aim of the Select Board in this matter was to receive the request to 
discontinue the road, appoint a date/time for a Site Examination and Public 
Hearing, hear comments from the public regarding Highway #95, review the 
testimony and evidence, and judge whether the public good, necessity, and 
convenience of the inhabitants of the municipality require the highway to be 
laid out, altered, reclassified, or discontinued as claimed in the request. 

 
The Select Board needed to determine that the discontinuance is required for 
the “public good, necessity, and convenience of the inhabitants of the 
municipality” per section 710. The Select Board found that 1) Highway #95 is 
located on private property. 2) If the road is not discontinued, it would be at a 
substantial cost to residents without any benefit.  
 
Motion: To discontinue Highway #95, to file the appropriate paperwork, and 
for the Chair to sign at conclusion.  
Made by: Mr. Fuller  Second: Ms. O’Brien 

 
8 Bottle Redemption Fund Request 

The Town has a “Bottle Redemption Fund” that revenue is entered into when 
the Town collects returnable bottles and cans at the Transfer Station with 
proceeds dispersed by the Select Board as grants to citizens/organizations who 
applied for the funds. According to the Treasurer, this process was shut down 
by the previous auditors because the Town had no authorization to keep those 
funds separate and roll them over from year to year. 
 
Since FY20, the Town has accumulated $6,034.81, following the deduction of 
the $1,000 granted to Lisa & Jeff Slade for flags. The Gardening Club 
President, Amy Beth Main, has requested a mini grant of $2,500 to continue 
their efforts in planting flowers, plants, trees, etc. for the beautification of 
Weathersfield. 
 
The Select Board went into discussion about the request. Mr. Fuller pointed 
out how this is revenue coming in from the transfer station and going into the 
general fund and that the revenue probably should be going into the solid 
waste fund, pointing out the deficit in the solid waste budget.  



The Select Board discussed the effect this fund could have on other towns 
contracting with Weathersfield, how the Town is expending labor at the 
transfer station to do bottle redemption, and that perhaps setting bins up for 
residents to sort redemption out their own might be helpful.  
 
The Select Board discussed that it would be nice to know what exactly the 
Garden Club is spending $2,500 on and that a proposal might be good to have. 
The Select Board requests that the Garden Club meet with the Parks and 
Recreation Commission.  
 
Motion: To move the Bottle Redemption Fund from the General Fund to the 
Solid Waste Fund. 
Made by: Mr. Fuller  Second: Ms. O’Brien 
Vote: All in Favor   

 
9 Board of Listers: Errors & Omissions to Grand List 

 
 

Motion: To accept the July 24 Errors and Omissions to Grand List from 
the Board of Lister in the amount of $3,109.81.  
Made by: Mr. Tillman Second: Ms. O’Brien  
Vote: All in favor 



 
10 Order to Reappraise 

The Vermont Department of Taxes is notifying towns required to reappraise 
Education Grand List properties. Act 68 (H.480) of 2023, altered the statutory 
triggers that require municipalities to reappraise. Effective for Grand Lists 
lodged on April 1, 2022, Vermont law 32 V.S.A. §4041a(b), requires that a 
municipality maintain its Education Grand List with a coefficient of 
dispersion (COD) that is at or below 20%, as determined by the Director of 
Property Valuation and Review (PVR).  
 
If the Education Grand List falls outside this parameter, the Director must 
order the municipality to reappraise. This statutory change does not alter 
existing reappraisal orders; municipalities that received a reappraisal order in 
prior years are still obligated to reappraise. Based on the results of the 2022 
Equalization Study, the COD in Weathersfield was outside the acceptable 
parameters, and therefore, an order to reappraise is issued. 
 
The Select Board discussed the two RFPs, one from NEMRC for the amount 
of $174,000 and one from NEMC for $172,000. NEMC can get it done 
between January and June of 2024, while NEMRC may take another two 
years. The Select Board discussed the pro and cons of starting the process 
sooner verses later and concluded that it has to be done regardless and that the 
conversation has been going on for a while.  
 

Motion: To award the reappraisal to NEMC for the amount of $172,000 
and to authorize the Chair to sign the letter.  
Made by: Mr. Fuller  Second: Ms. Smith  
Vote: All in favor 

 
11 Town Manager Update 

a. Projects 
• The Town Garage Roof Replacement project kicked off on 

Monday, July 31st. Following completion, the West Weathersfield 
Fire Department roof will follow.  

 
• Indus has been notified that they were awarded the crack sealing 

project and they anticipate completion in September.  
 

• BlakTop paving has been notified that they were awarded the 
paving projects on Sunset Blvd., Cherry Lane., Thrasher Road. The 
project will be completed no later than September 30, 2023.  

 



• Renaud Bros has been notified that they were awarded the Upper 
Falls Covered Bridge project. This project will be completed no 
later than 10/31/2023.  

 
• The Town is in the process of releasing an RFQ for engineering 

services for Martin Memorial Hall Drainage. 
 

b. Storm Damage/ FEMA Funding 
The Town attended the Applicants Briefing for DR4720. The briefing 
included information on the FEMA Public Assistance Program, Eligibility 
and Project Documentation, Contracting and Procurement, Time 
extensions on projects, improved alternate projects, and closeouts/ project 
completion certification Reports. The Disaster Number is FEMA-
DR4720-VT. The declaration was declared on July 14, 2023. The type of 
disaster is Severe Storms and Flooding. The funding mechanism will be 
through the Public Assistance and Hazard Mitigation. Designated counties 
include Addison, Bennington, Caledonia, Chittenden, Lamoille, Orange, 
Orleans, Rutland, Washington, Windham, and Windsor. 
 
The Town has $10,000 - $15,000 in total expenses for labor and materials, 
$25,000-$30,000 in mutual aid to Cavendish, and three (3) bridges that 
may be eligible, including the Ascutney Basin Bridge replacement, Little 
Ascutney Road Bridge (pending hydraulic study), and Upper Falls 
Covered Bridge (replacement of riprap). The Town is waiting on project 
estimates prior to completing the RPA but anticipate costs exceeding 1M. 

 
c. Moover 

The MicroMoo is a new, free, on-demand transportation service that is 
coming to the Town of Weathersfield. The Town Manager met with the 
Manager of MOOVER last week, and they will be providing 
transportation to residents in Weathersfield from Route 5, parts of 131, 
and the Ascutney Park & Ride. The MicroMoo is funded by state grants, 
and there is no cost to the town. 
 

d. Planning & Zoning Partnership 
Weathersfield partnered with the Towns of Windsor and 
Rockingham/Bellows Falls with Planning & Zoning. The three (3) towns 
will share Land Use & Planning staff, and share expenses similar to the 
formula used for the Transfer Station with Reading and West Windsor. 
The Town of Hartland may also join into the arrangement. Windsor is 
taking the lead on the employment aspect, similar to Weathersfield with 
the Transfer Station. Any towns wishing to join would do so through the 
Inter-municipal Agreement. 



 
e. Water District Project 

The Town applied for $1.2M to replace the water main line for the Water 
District. The project has been engineered and permitted. Interested parties 
attended the Priority List public hearing in Montpelier on the 31st and 
continue to advocate for the project. 
 

f. Virtual Meetings 
CCI & SAPA are in the process of improving the virtual meeting 
technology and setup.  
 

g. Radar Sign – Perkinsville 
The Town Manager is in contact with the Permit Coordinator. As of 8/3, 
the Town has been told the permit will be going through by 8/11. 
 

12 Long-term Debt Schedule 
The Town Manager presented the long-term debt schedule, which showed 
everything that the Town has interests or principle payments per fiscal year. 
The only item currently pending is the fire truck. The Select Board discussed 
the implications of current interest rates and potentially paying off some of 
these items with ARPA funds, such as the trash compactor. The Town 
Manager will bring back some projections for the Select Board.  

 
 

13 ARPA Discussion 
The Town Manager would like to request some funding to improve virtual 
meetings up to $5,000. 
 



Additionally, the Town needs to determine what the plan is for the remainder 
of the work for the Generator. The Town has a grant that it would like to close 
out, but there’s still $650 available for hooking up the generator to the 
propane. The Town originally budgeted $28,121.5 from ARPA for the 
generator project and has expended $28,164, and the generator has been 
installed on a concrete pad. The Town currently has $14,103.25 remaining in 
the ARPA fund for the propane hookup, and $650 remaining in the grant from 
VEM ($14,753.25 total). 
 
The Town Manager presented the following solutions: 
Option 1: includes installing a 1,000 UG LP Tank on the side of the building, 
excavating around the building to run the propane line, and installing the line 
into the generator. The gas line will consist of 1/2” poly coat and 1” 
polyethylene low pressure. The total cost for this to be done is $4,875, and the 
work would be done through McKinstry Property Services and Excavation. 
 
Option 2: includes installing a 1,000 UG LP tank in the back of the parking lot 
near the existing shed. The propane tank would be buried. The parking lot 
would need to be pulled up and the pipes sleeved in conduit. The line size 
would need to be larger. This would increase the price of the job to $5,800. 
 
The Select Board discussed the size of the tank and why the engineer didn’t 
suggest a smaller tank option, if the tank could be buried, and if the Town 
would be owning the tank. The Select Board discussed at length which 
location to put the tank. The Town Manger stated that he needs more time to 
think about it and investigate more about the details of this project.  
 
The Select Board had previously discussed prioritizing projects, long term 
debt, and the storm that recently swept through the State of Vermont. The 
Select Board had also requested that the Town provide more information 
about the Tree project, Town Clerk Digitization, and Hoisington Field. The 
Select Board moved the rest of the ARPA discussion to the next meeting.  
 

14 VLCT Town Fair 9/26 - 9/27 
Motion: To close the Town Hall on 9/26 & 9/27 so Town staff can attend 
the VLCT Town Fair.  
Made by: Mr. Tillman Second: Mr. Fuller  
Vote: All in favor 
 

The Select Board stated that the Town Office being closed on those dates 
needs to be well advertised and that their experience with these trainings have 
been good.  
 

15 Collaborative Stoke, LLC - Request to Cater Permit at Wedding 



a. Saturday, August 12, 2023 from 4pm-9pm at 396 Lottery Lane 
Motion: To approve the Cater Permit at the Wedding on Saturday, August 12, 
2023 from 4pm-9pm at 396 Lottery Lane and to waive all fees.  
Made by: Mr. Tillman  Second: Ms. O’Brien 
Vote: All in Favor   
 

16 Appointments 
There were no appointments but the vacancies are as followed:  

a. Budget Committee (5 Vacancies) 
b. Conservation Commission (2 Vacancies) 
c. Energy Coordinator (1 Vacancy) 
d. Green Up Coordinator (1 Vacancy) 
e. Lister (1 Vacancy) 
f. Parks and Recreation (1 Vacancy) 
g. Veterans Memorial Committee (2 Vacancies) 
h. Zoning Board of Adjustment (2 Vacancies) 
 

17 Approve Warrant 
To approve the warrants for 8/7/2023 as followed: 
 
General Funds 
Operating Expenses: $66,511.74 
Payroll: $24,660.86 
 
Highway Fund 
Operating Expenses: $40,979.88 
Payroll: $16,745.15 
 
Solid Waste Management Fund 
Operating Expenses: $2,510.82 
Payroll: $2,899.84 
 
 

Library 
Operating Expenses: $0 
Payroll: $3,503.94 
 
Grant: $1,565.89 
 
Parks & Recreation: $3,750.00 
 
Grand Totals: 
Operating Expenses:$115,318.33 
Payroll: $47,809.79 

 
 

Made by: Mr. Tillman  Second: Ms. O’Brien 
Vote: All in favor 
 

18 Any Other Business 
Mr. Tillman stated that the Planning Commission received a letter from the 
Chief of Police stating that some of the stuff in town could have an adverse 
effect on the community and that he may need more people. Mr. Tillman 
requested that this topic be put on the next agenda.    

 
19 Adjourn 

Motion: To adjourn the meeting. 



Made by: Mr. Tillman Second: Ms. O’Brien 
Vote: All in favor 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:36pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Nichole Gagnon 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
WEATHERSFIELD SELECT BOARD 

 
 

 
 
 

 
_______________________________ 
Michael Todd, Chairperson 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Wendy Smith, Selector 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Kelly O’Brien, Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
_____________________________ 
Paul Tillman, Vice-Chairperson 
 
 
_____________________________ 
David Fuller, Selector



 



Treasurer, Town of Weathersfield 
Weathersfield, Vermont 

 
 
 

TO: Selectboard  
 

FR: Steve Hier 
 

DA: 8/17/23 
 

RE: End of FY23 Transfers To/From Reserves 
 
 It is time again to balance out a series of transfers between the General Fund 
and various town Reserve Funds at the end of FY23.  The attached spreadsheet 
summarizes the transfers that need to be done.  This year the net result is $ 513.65 being 
transferred out of the Reserve Funds and into the General Fund. 
 
 Most of these transfers fall into the “must do” category.  I fully understand 
the frustration of asking a board to approve something when they really have no choice in 
the matter.  Why even ask for approval if it is a “must do”?  It is a combination of the 
way we budget certain revenues and the fact that the auditors will look for Board 
approval on transfers that do not match specifically budgeted dollar amounts. 
 
 In many of these transfers, revenue that should go into the reserve fund is 
budgeted as general fund revenue which then requires a transfer to the various reserve 
funds.  Those revenues could be directly deposited into the reserve funds instead, 
eliminating the need for transfers, but the tradition here is to include them in the General 
Fund. 
 
 Let’s go down the attached list of transfers and address each of them: 
 
 Vault Fees, Computerization, and Preservation reserve funds have been 
established by the voters such that the fees charged for those purposes go into the reserve 
funds and expenses for those purposes would come out of the reserve fund.  The way the 
Town has always handled these is for the revenue to be recorded into the General Fund 
budget and then transferred to the reserve funds.  In two cases we have already 
transferred an estimated amount of revenue as included in the budget.  During FY23 
actual revenue for both of those was less than budgeted so we need to move money back 
into the General Fund. 
 
 The article that established the Parks and Recreation reserve fund specifies 
that any unspent funds remaining in the Parks and Recreation budget will be transferred 
to the reserve.  Technically, this does not really need to be on the list for your approval 
but has been historically. 
 
 The Property Reappraisal transfer represents the state grant for that purpose 
which is again budgeted as a revenue in the general fund and then transferred to the 
reserve fund.  Each year we estimate the amount of the grant and transfer that budgeted 



Treasurer, Town of Weathersfield 
Weathersfield, Vermont 

estimate early in the year.  Since the estimate is never exact we then have to adjust that 
transfer to reflect the actual amount of the grant.  If FY23 we have already done that. 
 
 Each year the general fund budget includes a line for Aid to Residents in 
Need (ARN).  This year it was $ 1,500.  Additionally this year town residents donated a 
total of $ 170 for that purpose.  At the end of each year any unspent funds for this 
purpose are transferred to the ARN reserve fund.  If the Town has spent more than what 
was budgeted, funds would be transferred out of the reserve fund to cover the overage. In 
FY23 we did spend more than budgeted so we are withdrawing money from the reserve 
fund. 
 
 Dog license payments include a $ 1 fee for rabies control and prevention.  
Again, that amount is budgeted as a revenue in the general fund and must then be 
transferred out to the Rabies Control reserve fund. 
 
 There was no activity in the Unspecified Reserve (Rainy Day Fund) this 
year. 
 
 The ARN transfer and the Unspecified Reserve transfer are really the only 
“discretionary” transfers.  The others are “must do” based on how we currently account 
for reserve fund revenues by including them in the general fund budget.   
  
 
 
 
  
 
 
 



ITEM Account  FY23 FY23 Balance Already Balance Reserve DEBIT CREDIT FUND

Number Revenue Expense Transferred to Transfer Fund Account Account BALANCE

(before

transfer)

EXPENSE TRANSFER:

Vault Fees 103‐01.10 3,591.55$     ‐$                3,591.55$       5,500.00$     (1,908.45)$      Vault Usage 11‐7‐103‐90.03 41‐6‐445‐08.15 74,417.06$    

Computerization* 103‐20.15 6,327.00$     4,083.00$     2,244.00$       2,244.00$       Municipal Records 11‐7‐103‐90.00 41‐6‐440‐08.15 17,810.38$    

Preservation 103‐01.05 4,342.00$     ‐$                4,342.00$       5,120.00$     (778.00)$         Land & Vital Records 11‐7‐103‐90.02 15‐6‐103‐08.15 29,444.02$    

Voting Equipment ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                 ‐$                 Voting Equipment 11‐7‐103‐90.04 41‐6‐435‐08.15 3,053.93$      

Parks & Recreation**** 302‐38.10 1,500.00$     304.88$         1,195.12$       1,195.12$       Parks & Recreation 11‐7‐302‐38.10 41‐6‐425‐08.15 24,125.54$    

Property Reappraisal 104‐90.00 15,808.00$   ‐$                15,808.00$     15,808.00$   ‐$                 Reappraisal 11‐7‐104‐90.00 15‐6‐104‐08.15 286,137.48$  

CASH TRANSFER ONLY:

Aide to Res. In Need 106‐09.18 1,670.00$     3,285.32$     (1,615.32)$      (1,615.32)$      Aide to Res. In Need 11‐1‐010‐02.00 11‐1‐010‐03.00 4,601.99$      

Conservation 106‐09.17 35.71$           1,785.32$     35.71$            35.71$           ‐$                 Conservation 11‐1‐010‐02.00 11‐1‐010‐03.00 1,810.62$      

Rabies*** 106‐09.16 349.00$         349.00$          349.00$          Rabies 11‐1‐010‐02.00 11‐1‐010‐03.00 4,862.82$      

Unspecified Reserve ‐$                 11‐1‐010‐02.00 11‐1‐010‐03.00 121,067.94$  

‐$                (513.65)$        

NET TOTAL

* Transfer equals revenue less expenses in line 11‐7‐103‐24.00

** Transfer equals any donation revenue plus the  balance in 11‐7‐106‐90.04

*** Transfer equals number of dog licenses issued during year x $ 1.

**** Transfer equals unspent balance in 11‐7‐302‐38.10





Brandon Gulnick 
Town Manager 

TEL. (802) 674-2626 
Weathersfieldvt.org 

 

TOWN OF WEATHERSFIELD 
OFFICE OF THE SELECTBOARD/         

TOWN MANAGER 

5259 US ROUTE 5 
ASCUTNEY, VERMONT 05030 

 

 

August 16, 2023 

 
 
 
 

Susanne Terrill 
Human Resources 

 
Olivia Savage 
Principal Clerk 

 

RE: AVFD Hose Replacement  
 
 
Dear Board Members,  
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
On Monday, August 14, 2023, Industrial Analysts conducted Ascutney Fire’s annual hose testing. 
The test involves hooking our hose onto their pump system, and they boost the pressure up to 
400lbs, which is required by NFPA to determine whether a hose fails. A hose fails the test when 
there is water coming out of any section of the hose or the hose pulls away from the coupling 
fitting itself.  
 
Ascutney Fire also conducted their annual ladder testing through the same company. The test 
involves placing the ladder on two (2) upright pieces of metal with the ladder in between and 
placing a 500lb block on top. A ladder fails when the rivets pull away from the ladder and rung, 
and when they take the weight off and there’s bending in the ladder. 
 
FINDINGS 
 

1. 21 pieces of fire hose failed the test, and this was all tested last year, so the damage to the 
hose occurred over the past 12 months.  

a. Bubbles were found in the hose, and water was squirting out in the middle of the 
hose, and some lengths were broken apart, and others peeled away from the 
fittings themselves.  

2. Of the 21 pieces of hose that failed, 11 pieces are lines that go into buildings with 
firefighters.  

3. The 3” hose and 1” & ¾ hose are all 50ft long, and the 4” hose are 100ft pieces of hose, 
which are the supply lines.  

4. 1 ladder failed the test, and this ladder is a non-issue because it’s on the truck that we are 
replacing and selling. The buyer will be notified that the ladder failed the test.  

 
 
 
 



AVFD HOSE INVENTORY 
1) In 2021, the Ascutney Fire Department had 73 lengths of 1.75” hose OR 3,650FT of 1.75” 

hose.  
2) 9 of these hoses failed in 2021 and were removed from inventory. 
3) In 2022, the analysists did not find any hose that failed.  
4) This year, 11 lengths of 1.75” failed.  
5) 37 lengths of 1.75” hose is older than 10 years. NFPA strongly recommends that any hose 

older than 10 years be placed in reserve.  
6) 33 lengths of 1.75” hose is older than 20 years, and they are generally taken out of service.   
7) Of the 73 lengths of 1.75” hose that AVFD had in its inventory in 2021, 20 pieces must be 

removed due to failing the hose test, and at least 33 lengths should be removed due to 
exceeding the 20-year life, leaving the Ascutney Fire Department with 20 lengths of hose 
OR 72% less hose than it had in 2021/ 1,000 feet of hose remaining (2,650ft less).  

 
REPLACEMENT 
We received two estimates on two (2) hose replacement options. The first table demonstrates the 
cost if the Town decides to replace the hose that failed & the hose that exceeds the 20-year life. 
The second demonstrates the cost if the Town decides to replace the hose that failed and 50% of 
the hose that exceeds the 20-year life. The third table demonstrates the cost of replacing the 6 
pieces of 3” hose.  
 

Table 1: Replacement of 1 ¾” Hose (failed & exceeds 20 years life) 

Company Item Description Unit Price # of Units Total Cost 

MES DP17CCR-50-
ARN 

1.75”x 50’ 
Alum NH 

Cobra Combat 
$333 53 $17,490 

Reynolds MER 
12517050ATY 1.75” X 50’ $245.74 53 $13,024 

 
 

Table 2: Replacement of 1 ¾” Hose (failed & 50% exceeds 20 years life) 

Company Item Description Unit Price # of Units Total Cost 

MES DP17CCR-50-
ARN 

1.75”x 50’ 
Alum NH 

Cobra Combat 
$333 36 $11,988 

Reynolds MER 
12517050ATY 1.75” X 50’ $245.74 36 $8,846.64 

 
 

Table 3: Replacement of 3” Hose (Analysists refused tested due age (40+years old) 

Company Item Description Unit Price # of Units Total Cost 

MES Matex Hose 3” x 50’ $358.50 6 $2,151 

Reynolds MER 
12517050ATY 3” x 50’ $401.92 6 $2,411.56 

 



 CONCLUSION 
 
Proposal 1 - $15,175 (59 lengths of hose replaced/ 2,950ft) 
 

 Motion to replace 53 pieces of 1.75” hose from Reynolds for a total of $13,024 from 
the Firefighting Equipment and Gear Reserve Fund. 

 
 Motion to replace 6 pieces of 3” hose from MES for a total of $2,151 from the 

Firefighting Equipment and Gear Reserve Fund. 
 
Proposal 2 - $10,997 (42 lengths of hose replaced/ 2,100ft) 
 

 Motion to replace 36 pieces of 1.75” hose from Reynolds for a total of $8,846.64 from 
the Firefighting Equipment and Gear Reserve Fund. 

 
 Motion to replace 6 pieces of 3” hose from MES for a total of $2,151 from the 

Firefighting Equipment and Gear Reserve Fund. 
 

If you have any questions or concerns, please let me know.  
 

Attachments  
 

Attachment A – Hose Testing  
Attachment B – Ladder Testing 

 
Sincerely,  
 
 
 
Brandon Gulnick 
Town Manager 
Town of Weathersfield 
5259 US Route 5, PO BOX 550, Ascutney, VT 
E. Townmanager@weathersfield.org 
P. (802) 674-2626 F. (802) 674-2117 
www.weathersfieldvt.org 
 



ATTACHMENT A 

HOSE TESTING 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 







ATTACHMENT B 

LADDER TESTING 







Brandon Gulnick 
Town Manager 

TEL. (802) 674-2626 
Weathersfieldvt.org 

 

TOWN OF WEATHERSFIELD 
OFFICE OF THE SELECTBOARD/         

TOWN MANAGER 

5259 US ROUTE 5 
ASCUTNEY, VERMONT 05030 

 

 

August 16, 2023 

 
 
 
 

Susanne Terrill 
Human Resources 

 
Olivia Savage 
Principal Clerk 

 

 RE: Sale of Engine 1  
 
 
Dear Board Members,  
 
 
Engine 1 was advertised to sell for $25,999 in April 2023. In May, the price was reduced to 
$19,999. We have not received any interest from the advertised seller. Two (2) weeks ago a 
Deputy Chief from Fairlee Vermont stopped by the Ascutney Fire Station to pick up foam, and 
asked Chief Spaulding if he was aware of any Fire Trucks for sale in the area. Chief Spaulding 
showed him Engine 1, and they came down on Sunday, drove it, pumped with it, and offered us 
$8,000. The Fire Department in Fairlee voted in favor of purchasing this truck from us for $8,000.  
 
 
Recommendation: Sell our 1995 (chassis)/1996 (body) Engine 1 to Fairlee, Vermont Fire 
Department for $8,000.  
 
 
If you have any questions or concerns, please let me know.  
 
Sincerely,  
 
 
Brandon Gulnick 
Town Manager 
Town of Weathersfield 
5259 US Route 5, PO BOX 550, Ascutney, VT 
E. Townmanager@weathersfield.org 
P. (802) 674-2626 F. (802) 674-2117 
www.weathersfieldvt.org 
 



Brandon Gulnick 
Town Manager 

TEL. (802) 674-2626 
Weathersfieldvt.org 

 

TOWN OF WEATHERSFIELD 
OFFICE OF THE SELECTBOARD/         

TOWN MANAGER 

5259 US ROUTE 5 
ASCUTNEY, VERMONT 05030 

 

August 17. 2023 

 
 
 
 

Susanne Terrill 
Human Resources 

 
Olivia Savage 
Principal Clerk 

 

RE: Town Manager Update  
 
Projects 
 
The Town Garage Roof Replacement project is completed. I signed an amendment to our West 
Weathersfield Fire Department Roof Replacement Contract to extend the completion date to 
September 30, 2023. The weather has not been cooperating this summer, so an extended 
completion date was required. The materials for the project have been purchased, and the interior 
ceiling work coordinated.  
 
Indus has been notified that they were awarded the crack sealing project. They anticipate 
completion in September. BlakTop paving has been notified that they were awarded the paving 
projects on Sunset Blvd., Cherry Lane., Thrasher Road. The project is scheduled to begin during 
the first week of September.  
 
Renaud Bros has been notified that they were awarded the Upper Falls Covered Bridge project. 
This project will be completed no later than 10/31/2023. We are in the process of releasing an 
RFQ for engineering services for Martin Memorial Hall Drainage.  
 
We began efforts to relocate the generator adjacent to the Shed in the back of the MMH parking 
lot. Brookfield service will soon provide an estimate (if they haven’t already done so by the time 
of the Selectboard meeting on Monday). Once I have that estimate, and determine whether its 
reasonable, I will coordinate with an excavator to determine the cost of digging the trench for the 
electrical along side the dirt portion of the parking lot. I anticipate having a plan assembled for 
Selectboard Action on September 5th.  
 
Selectboard Meeting on September 4, 2023 
 
The Selectboard meeting on Monday, September 4th needs to be moved to Tuesday, September 
5th. September 4th is Labor Day.  
 
Storm Damage/ FEMA Funding 
 
We completed the RPA (Request for Public Assistance) through FEMA on 8/14. Following an 
assessment, the damage we have proposed to FEMA is approximately 1.2 million. The next step 
is the Exploratory Call, which is scheduled for Monday, 8/21/23 at 1:30pm. 

 



 Reappraisal Update 
 
I distributed a Notice of Award to NEMC to do our Town Reappraisal. They are excited to start 
the process and plan to hold a kickoff meeting in November. They anticipate beginning the 
process in May/June 2024.  
 
Assessor Services Update 
 
NEMRC currently provides Assessor services to Weathersfield. Since NEMC will be doing our 
reappraisal, NEMRC has decided that they no longer with to provide Assessor Services to 
Weathersfield. According to NEMRC, “there is an ongoing overlap between assessment services 
and completing a reappraisal; these are not mutually exclusive activities. No company completing 
a reappraisal wants their competition watching how they complete a reappraisal.  The company 
doing assessment services does not want to ever defend the work of a different company.” 
NEMRC has agreed to continue to provide Assessor Services until the 2024 Grand List is lodged, 
after that, they will be voiding our agreement with them.  
 
I asked NEMC if they can provide these services, and they stated they probably will not have the 
time, but they are willing to discuss it during our kickoff meeting. Many of our surrounding 
towns are in the same situation, and we plan to have discussions collectively on whether we can 
hire an Assessor and add that position to our Shared Services agreement. In my opinion, this 
would be the best long-term solution.  
 
Highway #95 Conclusion 
 
The findings and decision document has been completed and the order of discontinuance has been 
filed with the Town Clerk. The Order has also been sent to the requestor, all persons that attended 
the hearing, and abutters. A copy of this has been attached to this report.  
 
If you have any questions or concerns, please let me know.  
 
Village Wastewater Committee 
 
The Village Wastewater Committee has been advertised on this agenda to appoint three (3) 
members. This committee will work with Otter Creek Engineering as they develop the 
Wastewater Feasibility Study. For anyone interesting in joining this committee, please contact me 
at townmanager@weathersfield.org.  
 
If you have any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact me.  
 
Sincerely,  
 
 
 
Brandon Gulnick 
Town Manager 
Town of Weathersfield 
5259 US Route 5, PO BOX 550, Ascutney, VT 
E. Townmanager@weathersfield.org 
P. (802) 674-2626 F. (802) 674-2117 
www.weathersfieldvt.org 

mailto:townmanager@weathersfield.org








Brandon Gulnick 
Town Manager 

TEL. (802) 674-2626 
Weathersfieldvt.org 

 

TOWN OF WEATHERSFIELD 
OFFICE OF THE SELECTBOARD/         

TOWN MANAGER 

5259 US ROUTE 5 
ASCUTNEY, VERMONT 05030 

 

August 4, 2023 

 
 
 
 

Susanne Terrill 
Human Resources 

 
Olivia Savage 
Principal Clerk 

 

RE: ARPA Discussion  
 
Last week the Selectboard discussed prioritizing projects, long term debt, and the storm that 
recently swept through the State of Vermont. The board requested that we provide more 
information about the Tree project, Town Clerk Digitization, and Hoisington Field.  
 
From a high priority standpoint, I would like to request some funding to improve virtual meetings 
Up to $5,000.  
 
Additionally, we need to determine what our plan is for the remainder of the work for the 
Generator. We have a grant that we would like to close out, but there’s still $650 available for 
hooking up the generator to the propane. We originally budgeted $28,121.5 from ARPA for the 
generator project. We’ve expended $28,164, and the generator has been installed on a concrete 
pad.  
 
We currently have $14,103.25 remaining in the ARPA fund for the propane hookup, and $650 
remaining in the grant from VEM ($14,753.25 total).  
 
Option 1: includes installing a 1,000 UG LP Tank on the side of the building, excavating around 
the building to run the propane line, and installing the line into the generator. The gas line will 
consist of 1/2” poly coat and 1” polyethylene low pressure. The total cost for this to be done is 
$4,875, and the work would be done through McKinstry Property Services and Excavation.  
 
Option 2: includes installing a 1,000 UG LP tank in the back of the parking lot near the existing 
shed. The propane tank would be buried. The parking lot would need to be pulled up and the 
pipes sleeved in conduit. The line size would need to be larger. This would increase the price of 
the job to $5,800.  
 
It makes more sense to move forward with Option 2, however, if we do that, we should consider 
paving the parking lot. IF we move forward with Option 2, there will still be $8,953.25 remaining 
in designated ARPA funds to this project. Springfield paving provided an estimate to us to pave 
the parking lot and driveway, and that estimate came in at $28,275. We would need an additional 
$19,321.75 if we decided to do this.  
 
 
 
 



Here is a copy of expenses that have been approved to date and proposed expenses that need to be 
prioritized.  
 

 
  
 
There’s $337,787.41 available in the ARPA fund. 
 
Attached on the following pages includes:  
 

Attachment A – MMH Paving 
Attachment B - Hoisington Field Wetland Delineation & Survey Estimate 
Attachment C – Hoisington Field Master Plan Estimate 
Attachment D – Town Clerk Digitization  
Attachment E – Request for Tree Care Bids (note dates need to be updated if funded)  

 
 
If you have any questions or concerns, please let me know.  
 
Sincerely,  
 
 
 
Brandon Gulnick 
Town Manager 
Town of Weathersfield 
5259 US Route 5, PO BOX 550, Ascutney, VT 
E. Townmanager@weathersfield.org 
P. (802) 674-2626 F. (802) 674-2117 
www.weathersfieldvt.org 
 

Approved Expenses Expense % of ARPA
Small Businesses 12,000              1%

COVID (Supp, Test, Clean) 4,344                1%
Fire Departments 20,159              2%

Police Department 45,724              6%
Late Filing fees 13,818              2%

Roofing Projects 252,629            31%
Water District 75,000              9%

Food Shelf 9,290                1%
Martin Memorial Hall 41,475              5%
Building Assessments 5,828                1%

Total 480,267           59%

Proposed Expenses Expense % of ARPA
Hoisington Field 75,000              9%

Tree Maintenance 15,000              2%
Posts - Veterans Park 30,000              4%

MMH Drainage 20,000              2%
Trails 17,500              2%

Mapping - Scenic Views 15,000              2%
Digitization Town Clerk 25,000              3%

MMH Paving 28,000              3%
FD Training Stipends 20,000              2%

Town Welcome Signs 43,200              5%
MMH Electricity Improvments 30,000              4%

Security System - MMH 7,500                1%
Virtual Meeting Improvements 10,000              1%

Town Garage Generator 45,000              6%
Digitization of Land Use Records 25,000              3%

1879 SH Generator 12,016              1%
Total 418,216           51%



Attachment A 
MMH Paving Estimate 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PROPOSAL

Date

5/24/2023

Signature Date of Acceptance

ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSAL

Note: This proposal may be withdrawn by
us if not accepted within 30 days.

Proposal # 4053

Springfield Paving

Proposal Submitted to:

Town of Weathersfield
 P.O. Box 550
 Ascutney, VT 05030

Customer Phone

Martin Memorial Hall
Weathersfield, VT

10 Caajm Rd
Claremont, NH 03743

Job #

Payment to be made as follows:

as specified.

speciications, for the sum of:labor, complete in accordance with above

You are authorized to do the work

Payment will be made as outlined above.

conditions are satisfactory and areThe above prices, specifications and hereby accepted.

Authorized Signature

Jeremy Zullo

and estimates for:

Due upon completion

jeremy@sunapeepaving.com
(603) 763-5300  (802) 886-3300

WE PROPOSE hereby to furnish material and

We hereby submit specifications Total

Price to overlay already paved driveway and parking lot. 1/2'' shim coat and 1.0'' topcoat - approx 19,048 sq ft. 28,275.00T

Price to grade and pave RH driveway and portion of parking lot - 1.5'' base coat and 1.5'' topcoat - approx 4,584 sq ft. 14,950.00T
Vermont 6% Sales Tax 0.00

_______________________________________________________________________...

All material is guaranteed to be as specified. All work to be completed in a substantial workman-like
manner according to specifications submitted per standard practices. Any alteration or deviation from
above specifications involving extra costs will be executed only upon written orders and will become an
extra charge over and above the estimate. All agreements contingent upon strikes, accidents, or delays
beyond our control. Owner to carry fire, tornado and other necessary insurance. Our workers are fully
covered by Workman's Compensation Insurance.

$43,225.00



Attachment B 
Hoisington Field Wetland Delineation & Survey Estimate 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 

With Offices in 
East Middlebury, VT | Rutland, VT | West Lebanon, NH 

www.OtterCrk.com 

 
May 10, 2023 

 
Weathersfield Park & Recreation Commission 
PO BOX 550  
Ascutney, VT 05030  
Brian.bosenberg@gmail.com, Highway@weathersfield.org 
 
via email 
 
Subject:  Hoisington Field Project, Perkinsville, VT 
 Wetland Delineation & Survey Proposal 
  
Dear Commission, 
 

Thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal to provide Wetland Delineation & 
Survey services for the Hoisington Field Park portion of your Master Plan project for the 1879 
Perkinsville School House in Perkinsville, VT. We look forward to working with you on your project.  

 
PROJECT UNDERSTANDING 
 It is our understanding that the Town is developing a master plan for Hoisington Field and the 
former historical school house. There are several Class II wetlands mapped in and near the park, and 
the aerial photographs provided support the presence of wetlands in these areas. A wetland 
delineation is needed to inform the planning of the proposed project. Based on the information 
available to us, the area requiring delineation is approximately 7 acres. A survey of the existing 
conditions on the property has also been requested to aid in master planning. The existing 
conditions to be surveyed include the picnic pavilion, basketball court, wellheads, fences, parking lot, 
bus shelter, sign, utility poles along the road, underground utilities, rock outcropping, stone walls, 
the edge of the woods, and significant trees in the lawn areas over 4” DBH.  
 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The services outlined in this proposal include the services necessary to provide the 
Commission with a basemap of the existing facilities, topography and mapped wetlands / buffers.  
This scope is based upon your desire to initiate planning for the proposed project, and is not 
intended to provide full engineering services which may be necessary for complete design and 
permitting of your project. 

 
1. Wetland Delineation 

 
a. We will perform a site visit to determine the extent of wetlands and associated buffers 

within or adjacent to the project area. The wetland delineation will consider plant 
species, hydrology, and soil characteristics.  
 

b. We will coordinate a meeting with the State of Vermont District Wetland Ecologist to 



 
 
 

go over the delineation and receive concurrence from the State. 
 
2. Survey of the Field 

 
a. OCE will complete a topographic field survey at the project site, including structures, 

drives, relevant surface features, utilities and wetland boundaries.  Underground 
utilities will be shown based on information available from the property owner, Town 
records, and visible field evidence.  A topographic survey with one-foot intervals will 
be generated.  A boundary survey is not included in our scope of work at this time.  
 

b. A site plan will be completed showing the 1-foot contours, existing conditions, 
wetland boundary and 50-foot buffer.  

 
3. Survey of Woods 

 
a. Additional topographic survey would be completed of the woods area to the stone 

walls so that topography of the entire property can be shown on the site plan.  
 
PROJECT SCHEDULE 

We will proceed with the wetland delineation in May 2023. The site visit with the District 
Wetland Ecologist will be scheduled as soon as possible but will depend on their schedule. The 
survey and site plan will be completed by the end of July 2023.  

 
COST PROPOSAL 

Based upon our experience with similar projects and the requirements of regulatory officials, 
we propose to provide the services outlined above for a lump sum fee. As requested by the Town, we 
have broken the budget into separate lump sum amounts for your consideration: 

 
Options Budget 

1. Wetland Delineation 
2. Topographic Survey - Field Only 
3. Topographic Survey – Woods 

Total All 3 Options 

$ 3,000 
$ 3,500 

  $ 1,500 
$ 8,000 

We will invoice monthly based on the work completed at the end of each month. As the project 
progresses, we will keep you informed of the budget status and discuss any changes from the 
anticipated scope. Additional services requested by the Town will be provided on an hourly basis, plus 
expenses, in accordance with our most current Schedule of Rates and Fees at the time services are 
provided. 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

AUTHORIZATION 
If this proposal and the attached Standard Terms and Conditions meet with your approval, 

this document can serve as a Professional Engineering Services Agreement with your signature and 
date in the space provided below.  Please sign, date, and return the Agreement to our office. 
 

We appreciate the opportunity to provide these services for your project.  If you have any 
questions regarding this proposal or would like additional information, please call me.  
 
 

Sincerely, 
    

 
 
Mary Beth Poli, PWS 
Natural Resources Ecologist 

 
 
 
 
 

AUTHORIZATION TO PROCEED 
 
Signature:         
 
Name:         
 
Date:          
P2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
OTTER CREEK ENGINEERING, INC. (OCE) 
AND TOWN OF WEATHERSFIELD (CLIENT) 
HOISINGTON FIELD PROJECT, PERKINSVILLE, VT – WETLAND DELINEATION & SURVEY 
MAY 10, 2023 
 
Standard of Care: Services provided by OCE under this agreement will be performed in a manner consistent with the degree of 
care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession currently practicing under similar circumstances. 
 
Applicable Law: This agreement shall be subject to the applicable laws of the State of Vermont. 
 
Compensation for Services: Invoices will be submitted monthly and payable within thirty (30) days.  A service charge of 1.5% 
per month will be assessed on overdue balances.  In the event any portion of an account remains unpaid for 90 days, the Client 
shall pay applicable service charges and all costs of collection, including reasonable attorney fees. 
 
Additional Services: In the event the Client requests services outside those outlined in the Agreement, OCE may provide those 
services at an additional fee at established rates or other basis agreed upon with the Client.  At the request of the client, an 
amendment to the original agreement will be prepared to document these additional services. 
 
Ownership of Instruments of Service: All documents, including those on electronic media, prepared by OCE as instruments of 
service shall remain the property of OCE.  Any reuse or change without written approval by OCE is prohibited. 
 
Information Provided by Others: OCE shall indicate to the Client the information needed for rendering of services.  The Client 
shall provide the necessary information as is available. OCE shall be entitled to rely on its accuracy, completeness, and authority 
to furnish it to OCE.  The Client recognizes that OCE cannot assure the accuracy, completeness and sufficiency of such information 
and therefore, indemnifies OCE from all claims arising from its use. 
 
Buried Utilities: The Client shall provide OCE with any available information on the location, size, and type of all underground 
improvements.  OCE shall rely on this information in the preparation of plans and drawings and for subsurface penetrations.  The 
Client agrees to hold OCE harmless from any damage, liability, or costs resulting from inaccuracy of this information, except for 
damages caused by the sole negligence of OCE in the use of Client furnished information.  
 
Opinions of Probable Cost: In providing opinions of probable cost, the Client understands that OCE has no control over the 
contractor’s method of pricing, or the cost of materials and labor, and that such opinions are provided on the basis of OCE’s 
experience and qualifications.  OCE makes no warranty, expressed or implied, as to the accuracy of such opinions as compared 
to bid or actual costs. 
 
Permits and Approvals: OCE shall assist the Client in applying for those permits and approvals as listed in the Agreement.  OCE 
does not guarantee receipt of permits or approval by regulatory agencies. 
 
Construction Phase Services without Design: Because OCE did not prepare the Contract Documents for the Project, the Client 
agrees to the fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify OCE from any damage, liability or cost, arising from any errors or 
omissions contained in the plans, specifications or other Contract Documents prepared by others, except for the sole negligence 
or willful misconduct of OCE.  
 
Construction Observation: OCE will provide persons qualified to observe and report on construction and determine whether 
the work is in general conformance with the Contract Documents.  The Client recognizes that Construction Review is intended to 
minimize the risk of problems arising during construction; that it is not insurance, and does not constitute a warranty or guarantee 
of any type.  The Contractor shall retain responsibility for the quality of their work and for adhering to the plans and specifications.  
OCE shall not be required to make exhaustive or continuous on-site observations to check the quality or quantity of the work, 
and shall not be responsible for scheduling, construction means or methods, coordination of the work with other trades or 
construction safety precautions, all of which are the responsibilities of the Contractor. 



 
 
 
 
Shop Drawing Review: OCE will review Contractor submittals for conformance with the design concept and the contract 
documents.  The review shall not include an evaluation of the accuracy or completeness of details, such as quantities, dimensions, 
and fabrication processes. 
 
Jobsite Safety: The Contractor is solely responsible for jobsite safety.  OCE, through its professional activities, or presence at the 
site, has no authority to exercise control over any contractor in connection with its means, methods, sequences, or any health or 
safety precautions. 
 
Hazardous Materials: OCE’s scope of services does not include any work related to asbestos, or hazardous or toxic materials. In 
the event it becomes known that such materials are present at the job site, OCE may suspend work on the project, without any 
liability for damages, until the Client retains a qualified specialist  to abate the situation and warrant that the job site is safe and 
in full compliance with applicable laws. 
 
Mediation: The Client and OCE agree that all disputes between them and arising out of or relating to this Agreement shall be 
submitted to nonbinding mediation unless the parties mutually agree otherwise.  
 
Indemnification: OCE and the Client agree, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify and hold harmless each other 
from any damage, liability or cost, including reasonable attorney’s fees and costs of defense, to the extent caused by their own, 
negligent acts, errors or omissions arising from the Project. 
 
Limitation of Liability: In recognition of the relative risks and benefits of the project, the Client agrees to the fullest extent 
permitted by law, to limit the liability of OCE to the Client and to all Contractors on the project, so that the total aggregate liability 
shall not exceed $50,000 or OCE’s total fee for services, whichever is greater. 
 
Defects in Service: The Client will promptly report to OCE any defects or suspected defects in service or work so that OCE may 
take measures to minimize the consequences of such a defect. 
 
Termination: Either the Client or OCE may terminate this agreement at any time with or without cause upon giving the other 
party seven calendar days notice.  In the event of termination, the Client shall pay OCE for all services rendered and expenses to 
the date of termination, including work in progress. 
 
Taxes:  The amount of any Federal, State, or local excise, value added tax, or gross receipts tax which may be imposed on the 
Engineer’s fees under this agreement, shall be added to the fees under this agreement as accrued, and paid to the Engineer by 
the Client.  This does not apply to Federal or State income or payroll taxes.   
  



 
 
 

SCHEDULE OF RATES AND FEES 
 
ENGINEERING SERVICES: 
 Managing Engineer……………………………………………………....$155.00 per hour 
 Senior Project Engineer………………………………………………….$135.00 per hour 
 Project Engineer…………………………………………………………...$100.00 per hour 
 Staff Engineer……………………………………………………………...$90.00 per hour 
 Land Surveyor………………………………………………...…………..$115.00 per hour 
 Senior Environmental Engineer…………………………………………$130.00 per hour 
 Hydrogeologist…………………………………………………………...$110.00 per hour 
 Senior Environmental Scientist…………………………………………....$95.00 per hour 
 Environmental Scientist…………………………………………………...$80.00 per hour 
 Senior Engineering Technician………………………………………....…$100.00 per hour 
 Wetland Scientist………………………………………………………….$95.00 per hour 
 Natural Resource Ecologist………………………………………………..$90.00 per hour 
 Engineering Technician…………………………………………………...$85.00 per hour 
 Senior Resident Project Representative…………………………………..$100.00 per hour 
 Resident Project Representative………………………………………….$90.00 per hour 
 Administrative Assistant…………………………………………………..$65.00 per hour 

 
EXPENSES: 

Subcontracted Services (as required): 
Special consultants 
Material testing 
Equipment charges 
Permit Fees 
Outside reproduction services…………………………………………...At Cost Plus 10% 
 

Mileage……………………………………………………………………….…….Current IRS Rate 
Lodging, Meals……………………………………………………………………………….At Cost 
Per Diem (lodging, meals)…………………………………………………………...$125 per night 
 
Photocopies:                   Bond                     Mylar 
 8 ½” x 11” (Black and White)      $0.10 each 
 8 ½” x 11” (Color)          $0.50 each 
 24” x 36” (Standard Size)    $3.00 each  $15.00 each 
 Other Large Scale Copies    $0.50 / sf  $  2.50 /sf 

 
Other Charges.....................................................................................................By Special Mutual Agreement 
 
TERMS: 
Please refer to terms set forth in the Agreement. 
 
May 2022 

 



Attachment C 
Hoisington Field Master Plan Estimate 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



May 30, 2023

Ray Stapleton

Via email

Re:  Proposal for Professional Landscape Architecture Site Master Planning Services / Weathersfield Park

Dear Ray

I believe that Keith transferred the information he got from your request, but feel free to reach out to me with any 
corrections regarding scope and/or program for the Park. Please find this fee proposal that outines the process for 
providing a master plan for the 5-1/2 Acre parcel. 
 
SCOPE OF SERVICES

1. MASTER PLANNING PHASE
 A.   Site visit / Kick off meeting: Visit the site and photograph the parcel.  Get any additional input on the   

  program for the park, desired ball fields, play structure, parking needs and other desired amenities    
  We will need at the minimum a survey of the parcel boundaries and would recommend that someone   
  determine if there are any wetlands on the parcel or adjacent that might impact the development.  If   
  the parcel is fairly flat we can master plan the parcel without grading information but it will be    
  needed eventually to specify proper grading and stormwater treatment.

 B. Attend one public meeting to gather input, either ahead of developing concept alternatives or after to   
  receive input on concepts.

 C. Develop concept alternative sketches for the overall layout of the park taking into account desired ballfield   
  orientations and appropriate dimensions for the target age group.

 D. Meet with you and or the steering committee to discuss initial ideas and conceptual alternatives.
E. Make refinements to the plan & develop a final site master plan drawing for presentation to you including 

layout and materials.    
      F. Develop an illustrative color plan for public display and to assist with permitting.

Based upon the agreed upon Master Plan, Wagner Hodgson (WH) will prepare a fee proposal for additional services 
that could include:

2. DESIGN DEVELOPMENT/ CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENT PHASE
Preparation of detailed construction drawings and specifications required for proper site/landscape bidding.

A. Layout & Materials Plan:  Plan indicating the location of site features and scope including the arrival experience, 
pedestrian & vehilcular circulation, parking, plantings, drainage and grading. 

B. Grading Plan:  Plan indicating desired grades for above mentioned site features.
C. Planting Plan and Plant Schedule:  Plan indicating the location of proposed plant materials and existing plant 

materials to remain, including their names, sizes, and any other characteristics required for plant specimens.  
A plant schedule or list shall be provided indicating the quantity, botanical name, common name size, spacing 
and special requirements of each type of plant for the Project.  

D. Site Construction Details and Specifications:  Site construction Details and Specifications for above mentioned 
site features. 

E. Planting Details and Specifications:  Preparation of the landscape planting details and specifications to convey 
       specific planting methods for installation during construction for the selected Contractor.  
F.     Coordination with civil engineer and or contractor on state or local permitting.

L A N D S C A P E  A R C H I T E C T U R E
VT 802. 864. 0010   NY 518. 567. 1791
w w w . w a g n e r h o d g s o n . c o m



3. BIDDING & NEGOTIATION
A. Assist in finding contractors to bid the work and respond to questions that arise during the bidding process.

4. CONSTRUCTION OBSERVATION PHASE
After successful award of the Construction Contract, Wagner Hodgson will work closely with your contractor 
and, periodically observe construction, to review and provide written documentation regarding compliance with 
site/landscape design intent and construction documents on the following items:
A. Respond to requests for information (RFI), issue clarifications and process landscape related shop drawings.
B. Review and field select, plant material at nurseries as required.
C. Provide clarification sketches as needed and visit site to resolve site issues. 
D. Observe final installation of hardscape, walls, furnishings and plant materials; provide punch-list prior to 

commencement of Provisional Acceptance and the Guarantee Period.
E. Re-inspect site work installation at end of Final Acceptance Period to certify in writing that all necessary 

corrective work has been completed and that all plant material is in healthy, thriving condition.

COMPENSATION / TERMS
Compensation for the MASTER PLANNING PHASE will be billed on an hourly basis using the rates listed below, with a 
fee not to exceed Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000).  In the event that these efforts become more extensive or involved 
than anticipated, we will request a fee review; however, the total fee for services will not exceed the estimated total 
without your prior review and approval.

Partner                                        $175.00
Principal                                      $150.00
Senior Associate   $130.00
Associate                           $110.00
Licensed Landscape Architect $95.00
Designer                                       $85.00
Staff                $55.00

Fees do not include incidental direct expenditures made in the interest of the project such as reproduction, postage 
and transportation expenses that will be invoiced for reimbursement at cost plus 10 percent.  Statements for services 
rendered are submitted on the 1st of each month, and an interest rate of 1.5% per month will be charged on amounts 
30 days in arrears.  If you are in agreement with this proposal, please sign and return one of the enclosed proposals to 
our office at your earliest convenience.    

If you should have any questions or comments, please do not hesitate to contact me.  

Sincerely,

Jeff Jeff Hodgson, FASLA
Partner

Accepted By:                                                                  Date: 

Page 2                          May  30, 2023
Weathersfield Park - Fee Proposal

VT 802. 864. 0010   NY 518. 567. 1791

L A N D S C A P E  A R C H I T E C T U R E
VT 802. 864. 0010   NY 518. 567. 1791
w w w . w a g n e r h o d g s o n . c o m



Attachment D 
Town Clerk Digitization 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Attachment E 
Request for Tree Care Bids (note dates need to be updated if funded) 

 



 
 

Town of Weathersfield 
Request for Tree Care Bids 
February 22, 2023 
 
The Town of Weathersfield is requesting sealed bids for tree care projects.  Work to be completed by 
December 31, 2023. 
 
Scope of work 
There are 3 types of services that are requested by the Town and will occur at each location as directed.  

1. Tree pruning – Provide services to prune dead limbs out of trees designated for retention. 
2. Tree removal – Provide services to fell and dispose of trees and stumps designated for removal. 
3. Tree health evaluation – Written descriptions of the identified trees considering the overall 

welfare of the tree.  Include observations of insects and disease, grounds maintenance, site and 
soil conditions, climate considerations, etc.  Provide specific recommendations to protect tree 
health as well as health of the urban forest. 

*Successful bidder will provide traffic control as needed. 
 
Project details 

Location Pruning Removal Evaluation 
Hoisington Field – Parcel 07-03-15 
1800 VT-106, Perkinsville, VT 

2 3 5 

Perkinsville Park – Parcel 07-01-52.1 
35 Church Street, Perkinsville, VT 

2 8 8 

Center Grove – Parcel 08-02-21 
79 Center Church Road, Weathersfield, VT 

50 0 Grove 

Town Office – Parcel 5A-02-20 
5259 US-5, Ascutney, VT 

2 1 2 

Ascutney Park – Parcel NA 
5 Ascutney Park Road, Ascutney, VT 

1 1 3 

 
Pre-Bid Conference 
A Pre-Bid Conference for the Town of Weathersfield Tree Care project will be held on Wednesday, 
March 8 at 10:00AM prevailing time at the Weathersfield Town office located at 5259 US Route 5, 
Ascutney, Vermont. This conference is recommended for contractors wishing to bid on the projects 
listed above. Specific project site visits may be scheduled if needed prior to the completion of the Pre-Bid 
Conference. 
 
Industry standards 
The provisions of the most recent version of the American National Standards Institute (ANSI) A300 
Standards for Tree Care to include all supplemental provisions and attachments, all contract documents 
specified, and any other Federal, State, or Municipal applicable standards, policies, and procedures shall 
apply to this contract. 
 



 
 

Instruction to bidders 
All bids must be submitted on the provided bid form. The bid form must be filled out completely, signed, 
printed signature, and dated. Handwritten bid forms must be done in ink and must be legible. Corrections 
to handwritten bid forms must be initialed and dated. Illegible bid forms will not be accepted. If multiple 
bids are submitted, only the last one submitted prior to the bid due date and time shall be considered. 
Previously submitted bids shall be discarded. Bidders are to bid on the project in a price per location 
format. Bids for multiple projects may be submitted on the same bid form. All questions pertaining to this 
Request for Tree Care Bids shall be submitted in writing to Ryan Gumbart, Tree Warden at the 
Weathersfield Town Office located at 5259 US Route 5, Ascutney, Vermont 05030 or e-mailed to 
landuse@weathersfield.org. The question period ends at 2:00PM Wednesday, March 15. Questions 
received after this date and time will not be answered.  
Bids must be received at the Weathersfield Town Office located at 5259 US Route 5, Ascutney, Vermont 
05030 by 1:00PM prevailing time Wednesday, March 22, 2023. Sealed bids delivered by person, 
overnight express, currier, or parcel post must be clearly marked “Town of Weathersfield Tree Care Bid”. 
All bids will be opened and read aloud in public at the Weathersfield Town Office located at 5259 US 
Route 5, Ascutney, Vermont 05030 at 2:00PM Wednesday, March 22, 2023. Bid award is anticipated to 
take place on April 3, 2023. 
 

Award of projects 
The Bid, if awarded, will be awarded based on criteria of least cost per location, best qualified to perform 
the work in a time frame advantageous to the Town and public, ability in meeting the terms of the 
contract and ability to provide a quality product, and past performance of the bidder under previous 
contracts with Town, the State and elsewhere. Project must be completed by December 31, 2023. 
 

Location of work 
Hoisington Field – Parcel 07-03-15 – 1800 VT-106, Perkinsville, VT 05151 
Perkinsville Park – Parcel 07-01-52.1 – 0 VT-106, Perkinsville, VT 05151 
Center Grove – Parcel 08-02-21 – 79 Center Church Road, Perkinsville, VT 05151  
Town Office – Parcel 5A-02-20 – 5259 US-5, Ascutney, VT 05030 
Ascutney Park – Across from 20 Ascutney Park Road, Ascutney, VT 05030 
 

Disclaimer 
The Town of Weathersfield reserves the right: 

a. To accept or reject any and all bids in whole or in part and to accept other than the apparent 
lowest bid price and or total project cost as read: 

b. To amend, modify, or withdraw this Request for Bids. 
c. To cancel any and/or all projects prior to the start of construction without prior notification. 
d. To request submittal of supplemental documents or information from any and all bidders. 
e. To accept or reject a bidder’s request to hold a special pre-bid conference at a time and/or date 

other than that specified in the Pre-Bid Conference Section of this document based on special 
conditions and/or mitigating circumstances. 

f. To allow or disallow entry into the pre-bid conference for any potential bidder arriving after the 
start of the pre-bid conference. 

g. To postpone the time and date of the pre-bid conference due to emergencies and unforeseen 
circumstances and/or conditions. 



 
 

Deliverables 
A written report for each location and all trees designated for evaluation including: written descriptions, 
pictures, health concerns, recommended treatments, and recommended maintenance.  An overview 
section for each location should detail soils and site conditions, potential risks and hazards, and overall 
goals for the shade trees on the property. 
 
Requirements 
Successful contractors will notify Ryan Gumbart, Tree Warden, by email at landuse@weathersfield.org, 
at least 1 week before starting work and 1 week before work is expected to end at each location.   
 
Payment 
Payments will be made following the completion of the project in its entirety. 
 
 



TOWN OF WEATHERSFIELD 
APPOINTED OFFICIAL QUESTIONNAIRE 

Date: 8/17/2023Name: Hank  Ainley

Address:  721 Cady Hill Road

Phone Number: 802-263-5217   Email:  ainley.david@gmail.com

OFFICE DESIRED 

X   Trustees of Public Funds

Reason(s) for desiring office: I was asked by a current trustee and as a 
Weathersfielder this is a function of the town that I can help with.

Reason(s) you feel you are qualified for the office: I have no particular qualifications other than 
my willingness, a joy for cordial discussion, and admiration for the people who have kept 
weathersfield a wonderful place to live by working and volunteering for the town.

Please return or email this form to:  Brandon Gulnick, Town Manager 
Town of Weathersfield 
PO BOX 550, 5259 US Route 5 
Ascutney, VT 05040 
townmanager@weathersfield.org 
(802) 674-2626

mailto:townmanager@weathersfield.org


TOWN OF WEATHERSFIELD 
APPOINTED OFFICIAL QUESTIONNAIRE 

Name: ____Marina Garland___ Date: ___8/16/2023____________________________ 

Address: ____721 Cady Hill Road

Phone Number: ___802-263-5217___________________

Email: _____mgarland@coa.edu___________________ 

OFFICE DESIRED 
Animal Control Officer
 Connecticut River Joint Comm. Rep
 Energy Coordinator
 Green Up Coordinator
 Parks & Recreation
 Transportation Advisory Committee
 Surveyor of Wood & Lumber
 Veterans Memorial Committee
 Zoning Board of Adjustment
 Southern Windsor County Regional Comm.

  1879 School Committee
   Budget Committee
X Conservation Commission
 Fence Viewer

   Martin Memorial Hall Trustee
   Planning Commission
   Solid Waste Management District 
 Tree Warden
 Weigher of Coal
  Fire Warden
 Deputy Fire Warden  Southern Windsor County SW Mgmt. Dist.

Reason(s) for desiring office: I've seen so many fellow Weathersfielders volunteer their time to keep 
important aspects of the town going, and it feels like time to put in some hours of my own. 

Reason(s) you feel you are qualified for the office: My education is in ecology and human ecology, which 
feel quite appropriate for the conservation commission, along with general willingness and interest to learn 
from the folks who have been doing this work for years!

Please return or email this form to:  Brandon Gulnick, Town Manager 
      Town of Weathersfield 

 PO BOX 550, 5259 US Route 5 
Ascutney, VT 05040 
townmanager@weathersfield.org 
(802) 674-2626

mailto:townmanager@weathersfield.org









































	1. Select_Agenda_08-21-2023
	5. sb_minutes_august_7_regular_meeting
	7. FY23 End of Year Transfers Memo
	7a. FY23 Final Reserve Fund Transfer
	8. Errors and Omissions
	9. AVFD Fire Hose Replacement
	10. Sale of Fire Truck
	11. Town Manager Report - August 21 2023
	11a. Highway 95 Findings and Decision
	12. ARPA Discussion
	13. Hank_Ainley Volunteer Application
	13. Marina_Garland Volunteer Application
	14. Warrant



